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Financial highlights

* From continuing operations.

** See Financia! review for an explanation of the
adjustments made to profit before tax and earnings
per share in 2002. The actual profit befare tax

has increased by 104.1% from £17.7m in 2002
and the actual earnings per share has increased

by 17.5% from 4.18p in 2002,

£139.9mM+22.0%

Turnover*

£41.2m+22.6%

Operating profit*

29.37% 10 29.5%

Improvement in operating profit margins*

£36.0m+24.1%

Profit before tax

4.91p+24.3%"

Basic earnings per share

£46.8m+30.4%

Net cash inflow from operating activities
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PHS specialise in services that create a better
working environment; from washroom services,
to dust mat services, and live and replica plants
right through to point of use water dispensers
and crate rental.

We are one of the leading providers of workplace
services in the UK, offering rental and servicing
of workplace items.

Vision To be the best workplace services' provider
in the UK, offering quality and value to our
customers and a challenging rewarding career
for everyone in the Company.

Strategy Grow customer contract pool through
>Maintaining a highly incentivised sales team;
>Developing our service/product offering;
>Enhancing customer service;

>Reducing customer churn.

Continue selective acquisition strategy in
low-technology growing markets, with high
margin contractual income from large volumes
of customers and strong cash generation.

Enhance margins through

>Leveraging the existing national infrastructure;
>Continually improving operational effectiveness;
>Transferring best practices across the Group.
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Significant progress has been made with

all divisions delivering improved performance
largely through a combination of organic
and acquisition growth. Our acquisition
strategy continues to progress in line

with the plan set cut at flotation in

June 2001 to invest £100m in garnings
enhancing acquisitions over three years.
Financial highlights of the last year

included the fallowing:

+ Turnover from continuing operations for
the year ended 31 March 2003 increased
by 22.0% to £139.9m {2002: £114.7m),

+» Operating profit from continuing
operations increased by 22.6%
to £41.2m (2002: £33.6m}.

» Operating profit margins from
continuing operations improved
from 29.3% to 29.5%.

= Profit before tax increased by 24.1%
to £36.0m (2002 adjusted”: £29.0m).

» Basic earnings per share increased by
24.3% to 4.91p (2002 adjusted*: £3.95p).

+ Net cash inflow from operating activities
increased by 30.4% to £46.8m
(2002: £35.9m) reflecting an operating
profit to cash conversion of 113.6%
(2002: 106.8%).

» Investment of £37.5m in 16 acquisitions
over the year, including the £14.6m
acquisitton of Teacrate,

* Interest cover remains strong, being
covered eight times by operating profit.

* Total dividend for the year of 0.55p per
share (2002: 0.42p).

tn our first full financial year since listing
on the London Stock Exchiange, PHS has
continued to deliver strong results.

Crganic growth in the contract pool**
of 5.0% was achieved year on year, largely
driven by our highly motivated sales force
and supported by a number of new
marketing initiatives aimed at using our
existing customer database more effectively.
We also launched a number of new
products and services in the year to
reinforce our position as an extremely
innovative and creative supplier of services
within our sector.

Supplementing organic growth, the
Group invested £37.5m in 16 acquisitions.
These comprised 15 acquisitions bolted-on
to our existing business and one larger
acquisition, Teacrate, which took us into
the crate rental market and created a fifth
operating division for the Group.

Service productivity and customer service
measured by the percentage of contracted
services completed on time continued to
improve. These key performance indicators
are closely monitored as part of our
commitment to customer satisfaction.
Further benefits in these areas are expected
from our continued investment in the
development of our new IT systerms.

A number of new supplier contracts

were negotiated in the year, which are
expected to resuit in ongoing savings

of £1.2m per annum,

Beard changes In October 2002, Keith
Bland retired as Finance Directar. Keith
had given 18 years of service ta PHS and
we wish him every success for the future.
He was replaced as Finance Director by
John Skidmore, who was promoted to

the Board from his post as Group Financial
Controller, which he held for six years.

People We continue to deliver strong
results largely because of the dedication

of our most important asset, our people.
Significant investrment in training and
developmaent at all levels along with a policy
of making internal promotions wherever
possible help to keep our workforce highly
motivated, although we recognise the
importance of external recruitment to bring
new ideas and experiences to our business.
| would like to take this opportunity to
thank the entire workforce for their skill,
hard work and commitment without which
the Group could not continue its successful
development to date,

Outlook We have set ourselves robust,
challenging, but realistic targets for the new
financial year and beyond. | am confident
that we will succeed and deliver another
progressive performance through a
combination of organic growth and our
continuing selective acquisition strategy.

We anticipate that our organic growth will
continue to be driven by a combination

of innovative new products and services,

Bob Mackenzie Chairman

*See Financial review for an exrplanation of the
adjustments made to profit before tax and earnings
per share in 2002. The actual profit before tax has
increased by 104.1% from £17.7m in 2002 and
the actual earnings per share has increased by
17.5% from 4.18p in 2002.

** Organic growth in the contract pocl is a measure

of the increase in the annualiseq value of active centracts
at 31 March 2003 compared 1o the annualised value

of active contracts at 31 March 2002, less the annuglised
vakie of contracls acquired in the year.
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In our first full year since listing on the
London Stock Exchange, the Group
demonstrated its resilience, delivering
astrong setof results. PHS Washrooms,

PHS Treadsmart, PHS Greenieaf and PHS
Waterlogic all delivered improved profitability
and our new division, Teacrate, produced a
healthy contribution to our resuits.

The business PHS now provides services

in five main areas: washroom services, dust
mat services, live and replica plants, point
of use water dispensers, and crate rental.
The Group expanded its operations into
the crate rental market with the acqguisition
of Teacrate in April 2002, We continue

to be a customer-focused, sales-driven
organisation with separate sales and service
operations for each area of the business,
supported by central marketing,. [T, finance,
training and administration functions.

Focus Our aim is to be the first to identify
the needs of our customers and produce

A fourth initiative, "Project Q Call”, was

It is aimed at further improving custaimer
retention by providing service staff with
a het line number they can call to get

they become an issue for the customers
thermnselves. This initiative complements
“Project 24/24", which allows our
washroom customers to have their cail
answered by a PHS employee 24 hours a
day, seven days per week and have any
issue dealt with within 24 real-time hours.
We continue to invest in our IT systems
and are on target to fully implement the
upgrade 0 our software, supported by
a modern infrastructure, by April 2004.
The total investment in this project is
expected to be £2.0m. The re-engineered
software will improve customer service,
increase the efficiency of administrative
processes and provide improved
management information.

innovative ways of meeting those needs

ahead of our competitors. We believe that
our strong focus on putting customers first
and driving improvements to the services
we provide gives us a significant competitive
advantage in our markets.

Business development To support
our healthy organic growth, business
devetopment has been driven by increased
investment in marketing, extra sales
resource and the provision of new products
and services. Our operational initiatives
aimed at improving customer retention
and increasing the quantity of services
and products available to customers have
proved highly successful. “Leads United”,
our ongoing initiative to encourage our
empioyees to generate sales leads, provided
an impressive 43,000 leads this year.
"Project Matrix” is a new marketing
initiative, aimed at leveraging our existing
customer database to target those
custorners where we believe we ¢an
cross-sell additional products and services,
We have also continued our "Project Fast
Response” initiative, which implements
jdeas from our own employees on customer
retention through delivering better service
and taking ownership of customer needs.
This initiative has played a significant role

Acquisitions At the time of our flotation in

by investing £100m in acquisitions over
the following three years. The amount
invested in the two years ended 31 March
2003 totals £67.7m. Activity is focused on
opportunities that can be bolted-on to our
existing business, complemented by new
businesses in low technology, high margin,

requiring rental, service and maintenance
on long-term contracts, spending relatively
low sums of money. The areas in which we

The Group made 16 acquisitions in the

of these acquisitions were bolted-on to
our existing washroom services business,
althaugh the largest individual acquisition
at a cost of £14.6m, was the crate rental
business, Teacrate. This acquisition took
us into a new market that complements
the rest of the Group and fits with our
established acquisition criteria, being

a low technology rental business requiring
low capital investment while generating
high margins.

in the improvement of customer retention

rates across the Group.

The most significant of the 16 acquisitions during the year are set aut below:

launched recently to improve customer care.

immediate action to deal with any problems
that they identify on customers’ sites before

June 2007, we set out our plan to continue
to develop our workplace services businesses

growing markets where there is fragmented
competition and a large volume of customers

operate will also typically reguire low capital
investment and be strongly cash generative.

year at a total cost of £37.5m. The mwjority

Business name

Business activity

Consideration
(Em)

Teacrate Rentals Limited
{April 20G2)

Rental of specialist crates 1o the UK office and commercial moving market.

This acquisition took the Group into this market for the first time. 14.6

The Well Cerporation Limited
{May 2002)

Clinical waste collection and disposal. This acquisition was a boli-on to cur

existing clinical waste business. 5.7

Hygeni-Care Limited

Provision of washroom services. This acquisition was a bolt-on to our

{September 2002} existing washroom services business, 3.2

Rediard Hygiene Limited Tele-sales of washroom and workplace consurmables, This acquisition was a

(Cetober 2002) bolt-on 10 our existing washroom tele-selling business. 23

Britannia Hygiene plc Provision of washroom services, This acquisition was a belt-on to our

{December 2002) existing washroom services business. 38

Other 7.9
375

Costs and margins We continue to invest
in the improverment of route planning and
service performance in order to achieve
continuous ¢ost reductions and productivity
improvements. Our procurement initiatives
to deliver reat cost reductions through
agreeing long-term partnership deals with
our suppliers have continued with a number
of new contracts negotiated in the year.
These are expected to deliver annual savings
of £1.2m in areas such as vehicle leasing,
plastic components and consumables.

In addition, “Project Atlas” is a
new initiative fed by PHS Treadsmart
management aimed at increasing service
staff productivity by introducing a new
software package to improve route
planning. Once fully implemented in
the Treadsmart division, consideration
will be given to rolling it out across the
Group as best practice.

People The ability of our people, their
motivation, commitment and skill is vital
to our success and | would like to thank
them for their outstanding contribution.
By providing a creative environment that
gives people an oppaortunity to contribute
their ideas for improving our business, PHS
strives to encourage the fullest contribution
from its employees while at the same time
encouraging their personal development.
Our poiicy is to promote from within
wherever possible whilst recognising that
bringing in new talent from the outside will
encourage the creativity and innovation far
which we strive. Our Group training systems
are accredited to the Investors in People (1IP)
standard and our continued investment in
these systems for the development of our
staff saw over 4,600 training days delivered
in the year.

Outlook Cur aim is to be the best
workplace services’ provider in the UK,
offering quality and value to our customers,
and a challenging, rewarding career for
everyone in the Group.

Our strong financial position combined
with high profit and cash generation and
complemented by our many new initiatives
and ideas, puts us in an enviable position
to continue our profitable growth in the
year ahead. We are confident of a successful
40th year of trading.

Peter Cohen Chief Executive
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PHS Washrooms PHS Washrooms,

the number two provider of washroom
equipment and servicing in the UK,
grew turnover from £83.8m to £99.5m,
an increase of 18.7% in the year.

Divisional operating profit before central
costs grew from £40.0m to £46.0m, an
increase of 15.0%. The margin moved from
47.7% 1o 46.3% as a result of variations
in the mix of products and services sold.

PHS Washrooms contributed 71.1%
of Group turnover and 81.7% of Group
operating profit before central costs.

The development of the business was
driven by an increase in sales resource and
additional investment in marketing to help
enthance the productivity of our sales force.
New products launched included the new
Ultra Aire air filtration unit and a new
water management system which reguiates
water flow. Both products were developed
in-house at our Tamwaorth design and
assernbly facility. These and other new
products have additional features and
benefits, which enable PHS to achieve
higher average rental prices,

The collection and disposal of
pharmaceutical and dental waste businesses
have been grown both organically and by
acquisition. PHS is UK market leader in both
of these niche markets where managerment
see opportunities to expand further and
achieve profitable growth.

Operating review
PHS Washrooms

intelligentiy Clean PHS Washrooms'
intelligent water management system helps
create the perfect balance between hygiene
and economy. Using innovative technology,
the system automatically adjusts the flushing
of the urinal to match actual usage. This
innovative product is part of our extensive
range supphed to keep washrooms clean
and hygienic.

Both PHS Direct, which tele-sells washroom
consumables, and PHS All Clear, our clinical
waste business, contributed to the overall
improved performance of the division. Both
were grown through a combination of
organic and acquisition growth,

Significant contract wins included the
UK contract for the supermarket chain
Asda and three-year contracts to supply
Greene King and The Laure! Pub Group.
The fastest growing product group continues
to be air fresheners, where double-digit
organic growth in the contract pool has
been achieved.

Previous investment in customer
retention along with our newer initiatives
such as "Project Q Call” has helped improve
contractual customer retention to 87% for
the year (2002: 85%). In particular, we are
continuing to implement the best of the
ideas contributed by our people and selected
by the "Project Fast Response” team.

During the year, £20.6m was invested
in 11 acquisitions, including The Well
Corporation Limited which was bolted-on
to our existing clinical waste business.

The acquisitions of Hygeni-Care Limited
and Britannia Hygiene plc amongst others
provided significant levels of business to
be bolted-on to the existing core business.
Management continues to see a large
number of potential acquisition targets

in the UK washrooms services’ market.

picture picture
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PHS Treadsmart PHS Treadsmart, the
number one provider and maintainer

of standard and speciality mats irt the UK,
grew turnover from £13.5m to £14.4m,
an increase of 6.7% In the year.

Divisional operating profit before central
costs grew from £3.4m to £3.9m, an
increase of 14.7%. The margin improved
from 24.9% to 27.3%.

PHS Treadsmart contributed 10.3%
of Group turnover and 7.0% of Group
operating profits before central casts.

The growth in both turnover and
operating profit was driven by the increased
demand for speciality mats, which now
makes up over half of the division's
contractual business. These mats are
custom-made with the customer choosing
the size and design and then manufactured
to a high standard by carefully selected
third parties.

The improvement in the margin
was the result of three mairt factors: an
improvement in the rental pool mix away
from standard and into speciality mats;
improvements in service productivity from
the Group's initiatives in this area: and the
positive impact of price changes across all
product groups.

Operating review
PHS Treadsmart

picture

in October 2002, PHS Treadsmart
introduced a new range of speciality
mats, including leisure and sparts mats for
swimming pools and sports centres, aqua
mats for kitchers and food preparation
areas and magna mats far ¢lean room
environments such as laboratories, electronic
manufacturing and research establishments.
As one of the Targast mat purchasers in
Europe, our work with mat technologists
around the world allows us to develop our
product range to offer creative solutions to
meet the needs of our customers, frequently
introducing new mat technologies to the
UK market for the first time.

A new service centre was opened
in Andover in the first half to improve
the customer service in that region and
a number of initiatives, including a "Good
to Come Back to PHS" campaign, were
{faunched in the year. This contributed
to PHS Treadsmart improving contractual
custoimer retention to 86% for the year
(2002: 85%).

Safe and Hygienic PHS Treadsmart's leisure
mat provides an attractive, anti-slip and
hygienic solution for [efsure industry wet
areas such as swimming pools and shower
rooms. Manufactured from 97% recycled
materials with integral anti-microbial
properties, the mat provides a safe and
durable floor covering. This mat forms part
of our extensive range of speciality mats
suitable for all environments.
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PHS Greenleaf At PHS Greenleaf, the
number one provider and maintainer

of live and replica plants to commercial
premises in the UK, turnover feli from
£14.17m to £13.2m as the result of a cyclical
downturn in the market, a reduction of
6.4% in the year.

Despite this, divisional operating profit
before centrai costs remained at £2.0m
with the margin improving from 14.1%
ta 15.2%.

PHS Greenleaf contributed 9.4%
of Group turnover and 3.6% of Group
operating profit before central costs,

Management attention was focused
on achieving cost reductions to produce
enhanced margins despite the temporary
fall in demand. This fall is being addressed
by a recent reorganisation of the sales
management structure and investment
in additional resource in the sales area
1o ensure PHS Greenleaf is better equipped
to maintain and grow the levels of business
in the medium term. Customer retentior
was 74% (2002: 71%).

Operating review
PHS Greenleaf

Positively Natural PHS Greenleaf’s
extensive range of live plants will enhance
any working environment. Studies have
shown that introducing live plants to

the workplace can have a positive effect
on employees, leading to increased
productivity, reduced stress and lower
noise levels. The natural foliage acts

as a filter, helping to remove poliution
and bacteria from the air.

Throughout the year, PHS Greenleaf
continued to win major competitive
contracts including the UK contract for
Lioyds TSB and a substantial new contract
for Alton Towers, which commenced
installation in May 2003,

New container designs and creative
offerings were launched in the year to
improve the range of products available to
our custormers. Our continuing commitment
to improving the range of products on offer
is particularly important when bidding for
large projects. PHS Greenleaf won awards
from the City of Londen for creative
planting in the year of the Queen's Jubilee.

The appointment of a new divisional
Managing Director in December 2002
has led to the introduction of a number
of initiatives which have begun to deliver
benefits that are expected to continue
into the new financial year and beyond.
These initiatives have helped to control
subcontractor costs, improve stock controf
and raised the quality and timeliness
of management information.

picture picture
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PHS Waterlogic PHS Wateriogic,

which provides and maintains plumbed-in,
point of use, purified water dispensers,
grew turnover from £3.3m to £7.1m,

an increase of 115.2%.

Divisional operating profit before central
costs improved from £0.9m to £2.6m, an
increase of 188.9%. The margin improved
from 26.2% to 36.5%.

PHS Waterlogic contributed 5.1%
of Group turnover and 4.6% of Group
operating profit before central costs,

Our investment in sales and marketing
to rapidly grow this business focused on
winning new customers and converting
existing bottied water users to the point of
use dispensers supplied by PHS Waterlogic.
This was achieved by promoting the simple
message about the higher quality, lower
cost and greater convenience offered
by these point of use dispensers,

Operating review
PHS Waterlogic

picture

The launch of the WL3000 dispensers,
which offer additional features and benefits
over the previous WL950 dispensers, played
a key role in the substantial growth of the
division. The WL3C00 is available in hot,
chilled, still and sparkiing variants and
features improved filtration systems with
an ultra-modern look.

On the operational side, two warehousing
and distribution centres were consolidated
into one modern facility near Peterborough,
resulting in cost reductions and improved
customer service. Relationships with key
suppliers have been developed, allowing
us to work together on value engineering
projects to improve quality and reduce costs.

Focus has also been directed at retaining
the existing business, which achieved
contractual customer retention of 87% for
the year (2002: 94%). The customer carg
team has been strengthened and service
resource for installs, repair and maintenance
increased to manage the growth achieved.

Refined for Purity PHS Waterlogic's

point of use WL3000 dispenser offers

a three-stage purification process to ensure
the water dispensed is pure and free from
harmful bacteria. The water is passed
through two advanced filtration chambers
and an ultraviolet sterilisation unit before
being dispensed in a combination of hot,
chilled, still or sparkling variants.
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Teacrate Teacrate, the number two operator
in the UK office and commercial moving
market, cantributed turnover of £5.8m

and operating profit of £1.8m in its first
year, The margin achieved was 30,9%.

Teacrate contributed 4.1% of Group
turnover and 3.1% of Group operating
profit before central costs.

These resuits were achieved despite
demand for crates in the office and
commercial moving market being depressed
by a fall in demand from financial services
customers in London and the South East.
Attention to improving service productivity
and developing relationships with suppliers
has helped sustain the margin. The strategy
to maintain and grow profitability and
margins has followed two main routes.

Firstly, Teacrate has focused on
improving its share of the office and
commercial moving market by demonstrating
the added value to the customer from using
Teacrate's advanced computer software,
including customer-facing internet based
services. This differentiates Teacrate from
its competitors by enabling custormers
to view the status of their accounts online
and allowing intermediate customers to
invoice end-use customers through Teacrate’s
system. Significant business won from
a competiter includes the national accounts
for Axa and Commercial Move Management.

Operating review
Teacrate

Perfectly Integrated From crates designed
to hold a complete computer system

to those for holding organically grown
produce, Teacrate provide strong, clean and
durable products. With advanced computer
software including customer-facing intemet
based services and an integrated order,
delivery and invgice process, Teacrate offers
the complete crate solution,

Secondly, Teacrate has moved into the
market providing crates for food distribution.
A new range of products and services has
been launched aimed at customers involved
in the production and processing of food.
Customers driven by health and safety,
environmental and cost considerations are
being persuaded to move into plastic crate
rental. We anticipate that this market will
grow rapidly to account for a significant
proportion of divisional turnover.

In addition to these two main routes,
Teacrate has expanded its offering in the
retail market, where packaging dernands
driven by seasonal increases in stock have
provided valuable opportunities for its
services. Business with Boots, and more
recently with Focus DIY, has been won
at the expense of competitors,

During April 2002, Teacrate opened
a new distribution and customer service
centre in Glasgow and another new centre
was opened in Sunderiand later in the year.
Both investments were made to expand
the division’s geographical coverage
of the core office and commercial moving
markets outside the South East to defiver
an improved service to both new and
existing customers.

picture Ppicture
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The year to 31 March 2003 was PHS's first
full year as a listed company following its
flotation in June 2001. The Group's strategy
of growing the business through a mix of
organic and acquisition growth resulted in
ancther year of improved profitability and
strong cash generation.

Results for the year The Group achieved
a 22.0% increase in turnover and a 22.6%
increase in operating profit from continuing
operations. These improvements were
largely the result of strong growth in both
the PHS Washrooms and PHS Waterlogic
divisions, as well as the impact of the
acquisition of Teacrate in April 2002,

Operating profit from continuing
operations of £47.2m was achieved at a
margin of 29.5%. This compares favourably
with the operating profit from continuing
operations of £33.6m eamed in the previous
year at a margin of 29.3%.

The full year benefit from refinancing
at flotation resulted in a net interest charge
of £5.2m, a saving of £9.7m on the £14.9m
charge in the previous year. This saving
contributed towards an increase of over
100% in pre-tax profit, which grew from
£17.7m in the previous year to £36.0m in
the current year.

A more comparable profit before tax
for 2002 is £29.0m as illustrated in the
table on page 18. This profit is based on
the assumption that the capital and debt
structure immediately following the
flotation in June 200Twas in place for the
whole of that financial year and discounts
the £969,000 loss on disposal of subsidiaries.
On this basis, profit before tax has increased
by 24.1% in the current year.

Taxation The tax charge for the year was
£10.6m, compared with the credit of £0.8m
that arose in the previous year as the result
of the introduction of the refinancing on
flotation and requirement to account for
deferred tax on a full provision basis.

The effective rate of tax for the year is
29.5% and differs from the 30% standard
rate of corpaoration tax in the UK largely
betause of the credit of £0.1m arising
where actual tax due in respect of previous
years differs from the charge recognised in
the financia) statemenis for those years,

Dividend The Board is recommending a
final dividend of 0.38p per share, giving
a total dividend for the year of 0.55p per
share. The total dividend is covered
8.9 times by earnings.

If approved, the Group will pay the
final dividend on 20 August 2003 to all
shareholders registered on 25 July 2003.

Acquisitions The acquisition of bolt-on
businesses and other businesses that the
Directors believe wili complement the
existing business continues to form a core
part of our strategy to achieve further
growth. During the year, £37.5m has been
invested in 16 acquisitions, resulting in
£37.3m of goodwill being capitalised on
the balance sheet as an intangible asset.

The largest individual acquisition
was that of Teacrate for £14.6m,
which created a fifth operating division.
This acquisition generated a £1.8m
contribution to operating profit in the
year. Other acquisitions were bolted-on
to the Group's existing operations and
all were successfully integrated according
to schedule,

The Board have reviewed the
acquisitions and underlying business and
concluded that as in the pravious year, the
associated goodwill has an indefinite life and
caonsequently, NG amortisation has been
charged. More detailed commentary on
our policy regarding the amortisation of
goodwill is provided in note 1 to the
financial staternents.

Capital expenditure The Group spent
£10.3m gross on capital expenditure, which
represented 129% of its £8.0m depreciation
charge. Sales of fixed assets raised £0.2m.
As our businesses are predominantly of a
service or rental nature, the majority of the
capital spend relates to equipment installed
at customers’ premises that requires periodic
replacement in addition to expansion and
enhancerment. This expenditure is necessary
to provide the equipment at the core of our
business and the increase on the previous
year reflects the growth in the business and
increased demand for our Services.
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Financial review
continued

Earnings per share Basic and diluted
earnings per share have increased from
4.18p to 4.91p, an increase of 17.5%,

The movement is influenced by a number
of transactions in the year ended 31 March
2002, caused by the Company's flotation
in Jure 2001, After adjusting for these
transactions, basic earnings per share would
have been 3.95p. These adjustments lead
to a more comparable basic earnings per
share for the previous year as a consistent
capital and debt structure is assumed for
the whole of that year and the effect of the
exceptional loss on disposal of subsidiaries
of £969,000 is discounted.

Had the increase in issued share capital
that took place on flotation been in place
for the whole of the previous year, the
weighted average number of shares used
in the calculation of basic earnings per
share for that year would have been
517,045,000 shares.

The adjusted net profit for the
previous year would have been
£20,437,000 instead of the £17,656,000
presented in the financial statements.

A reconciliation between these two amounts
is presented below.

The adjustments relating to interest
payable and other charges assume that
the bank borrowings of £67,818,000 net of
the issue costs incurred on raising this debt
of £771,000 were in place at the start of
the financial year. The interest rate and
non-utilisation fees that would have been
applied to these borrowings under the loar
agreement in place has been used to
calculate the interest that would have been
charged for the period to flotation.

Tax on adjusted profit has been calculated
at an effective rate of 29.5%. This is the
effective rate of tax charge for the year
ended 31 March 2003, which should not
be significantly different to that charged in
the previous year had the one-off deferred
tax credit of £4.8m from the recognition
of a previously unrecognised deferred tax
asset not arisen.

Financing The Group has generated cash
of £46.8m from its operating activities,
representing a 113.6% conversion of its
£41.2m operating profit. This conversion
rate is ant improvement on the 106.8%
achieved in the previous year, where
operating profit of £33.6rm was converted
to cash of £35.9m. Net capital expenditure
represents 21.6% of the operating cash
inflow generated in the year, compared to
22.1% in the previous year.

The Group's strategy of funding its
acquisitions through a combination of
operating cash flows and external
borrowings contributed towards the overall
cash balances of the Group falling by £3.5m
through the year. Additional net debt of
only £18.4m arose in the year to fund the
Group's £37.5m spend on acquisitions,
bringing the total net debt to £87.9m at
31 March 2003. The resulting net gearing
has moved from 28.5% to 33.0%.

Year ended 31 March 2002 £'000 £'000
Profit before taxation per financial statements 17,656
Add back of relevant costs:
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings 969
Interest payatle on borrowings repaid at flotation 11,555

12,524
Dediuct additional costs on debt for the pre-flotation period
Interest on bank loans™ 1,150
Amortisation of issue costs™ 41

(1.191)
Adjusted profit before taxation 28,989
Tax on adjusted profit before taxation at 29.5% (8,552)
Adjusted net profit 23,437
Welghted average number of shares 517,045
Adjusted basic earnings per share 3.95p
Year ended 31 March 2003
Basic earmings per share 4.91p
Percentage intrease in adjusted basic eamings per share 24.3%

{1) interest on bank loans is calculated applying an interest rate of 6.5% p.a. for one month and 6.25% p.a. for
1wo months on £68,589,000 and applying non-utilisation fees of 0.5% for three months on the unutilised facility

of £38,411,000,

(2) Arnortisation of issue costs is the additional amortisation of the issue costs of £771,000 to make the interest charge
equal 1o a full year's amortisation. The issue costs are being amortised over five years and an interest charge of
£113,000 is recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2002.
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Treasury management The Group operates
a central treasury function which manages
liquidity and interest rate risks with the
ultimate objective of ensuring the provision
of sufficient cost-effective financing.

This function is ultimately responsible to

the Board who will sanction all treasury
policies adopted. The policies in place to
manage these risks are unchanged from
those in use at the previous year-end and it
remains the Group’s policy that no trading
in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The Group does not undertake any
significant transactions in foreign currency
nor have any assets or liabilities denominated
in foreign currency.

Liquidity The Group's policy on liquidity is
to ensure a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility. Operating cash flows
are reinvested in acquisitions and other
capital expenditure as far as possible whilst
retaining adequate funds to finance ongoing
activities. Adequate uncomimitted loan
facilities are maintained to supplement these
cash flows when required.

At 31 March 2003, the Group had
sterling bank-borrowing facilities totalling
£140.0m, of which £68.4m expires on
29 June 2004, and the remainder on
29 June 2006. £44.3m of these facilities
were unutilised at the balance sheet date,
although subseguently, an additional
£20.0m has been drawn down to partially
fund the acquisitions made in that period.
The Board is currently considering options to
refinance these facilities but do not envisage
any difficulties in achieving this.

The Group is in compliance with all the
covenants relating to these facilities, none of
which are restrictive to funding or investment
policy. The Board continually maonitors actual
performance against these covenants.

Interest on borrowings Borrowings
under the facilities referred to above account
for the large majority of the Group’s debt.
These borrowings are at floating rates of
interest because the Board believes that the
current environment of low gearing and high
interest cover make the resuiting level of
interest rate risk acceptable.

Other borrowings comprise outstanding
loan notes at floating rates of interest
that have been issued to fund selected
acquisitions and hire purchase or finance
leases at fixed rates of interest. Capital assets
are purchased outright rather than through
hire purchase or finance leases due 1o the
availability of funds at a more beneficial
interest cost than is generally available on
such leases. Those hire purchase or finance
leases included in the balance sheet were
acquired along with various acquisitions.

Interest cover remains strong, being
covered eight times Dy operating profit.

Accounting policies The Board has reviewed
the accounting policies used in the preparation
of these financial staterments and believe each
to be the most appropriate. The principal
accounting policies are set out in note 1 to

the financial statements. There have been ro
changes to accounting policies in the year,

John Skidmore Finance Director
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picture
i John Murray Allan Jan Gunnar Astrand
FBOE!lfI;(tj Oh'li DlreCtOFS Non-executi)\’/e director (age 54) Non-executive director (age 56)
rom et torig John Allan joined the Board of PHS as a Jan Astrand joined the Board of PHS

nen-executive director in June 2001 and as a non-executive director in June 2001,
is Chief Executive of Exel plc. He joined He is also Chairman of Car Park Group AB
Ocean Group plc, as Chief Executive, in Sweden and a non-executive director
in September 1994 and in May 2000 of Northgate ple. Prior to this, he was
Ccean Group and Exel {formerly NFC) President and Chief Executive of
merged to form Exe! plc. Prior to joining Axus International Inc, from 1984
Ocean Group, he was a main board Director  to 1999. From 1989 to 1994 he was
of BET. He is a non-executive director of Finance Director for Hertz Europe Ltd.
Wolseley Ple, Vice Chairman of Freight Between 1986 and 1988, he worked for
Forwarding Europe (Trade Association) Commeodore International Ltd initially as
and President of the Freight Transport Vice President of Finance for Europe and
Association. John is also a member of ultimately as Chief Financial Officer.

the CBI President's Committee.
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Peter James Cchen
Chief Executive (age 50)

Peter Cohen joined PHS as Chief Executive
in April 1998. Prior to joining PHS he

held the position of Chief Executive of
Holt Lioyd Group Limited, a manufacturer
and marketer of consumer care produicts,
from 1991 to 1998. He was President

of Power Conversion tinc./Crompton
Eternacelt from 1989 to 1991 and before
that he was Managing Director of
Crompton Vidor Limited and Hawker
Siddeley Dynamics Engineering.

picture

Robert David Mackenzie
Non-executive Chairman (age 50)

Robert Mackenzie joined the Board of
PHS as non-executive Chairman in
September 2000. Prior to joining PHS,

he was Chairman and Chief Executive of
National Parking Corporation Limited, and
Chairman of Greenflag Lirmited. He was also
Group Finance Director of BET Plc from
1991 to 1994 and Group Finance Director
of Storehouse plc and Chief Executive of
Retail Operations from 1989 to 1990
From 1986 to 1989 he was a Financial
Comptroller for Hanson plc.

John Fletcher Skidmore
Finance Director {age 36}

John Skidmore joined the Board of PHS

as Finance Director in October 2002
following the resignation of Keith Bland
from that post. Before this, he held the
post of Group Financial Controller for

six years. Before joining PHS, he was

an audit manager with Deloitte & Touche,
where he had previously qualified as

a Chartered Accountant,
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» 1
Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2003
The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2003.

Principal activity and business review

The Group is engaged in the provision of workplace Services on custorners’ premises. There are five core business areas that have
been operating throughout the year: washroom services, dust mat services, [ive and replica plants, point of use water dispensers and
specialist crate rental. The vast majority of customers have rental, service and maintenance contracts. A review of the Group's business
and discussion of likely future developments is provided in the Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive’s review and Financial review on
pages 2 to 19,

Results and dividends
Operating profit for the year was £41,216,000 (2002: £33,567,000).

The result for the year after taxation was a profit of £25,402,000 (2002: £18,443,000).

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.38p per ordinary share (2002: 0.29p) and paid an interim dividend of
0.17p per ordinary share {2002: 0.13p) on 28 January 2003. Subject to approval by shareholders of the final dividend, a total dividend of
0.55p per ordinary share will be paid in respect of the year at a total cost of £2,844,000. If approved, the Group will pay the final dividend
oh 20 August 2003 to all shareholders registered on 25 luly 2003,

Post balance sheet events
Details of all material post balance sheet events are given in note 31 to these financial statements,

Directors
The Directors of the Company at 31 March 2003 are listed on page 56. K Bland also served on the Board from the start of the year until
resigning on 1 Octoher 2002,

Details of the Directors’ remuneration, service contracts and irterests in shares, share options and debentures are shown in the
Remuneration report on pages 25 to 27.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, J F Skidmore having been appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy on 1 October 2002
will retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election. Biographical details of each Director are given
on pages 20 and 21.

Details of the role of the Board, including the role of non-executive directors, are given in the Corporate governance statement on
pages 28 and 29.

Policy on the payment of creditors

It is Group policy to comply with terms of payment negotiated with suppliers. Where payment terms are not negotiated, the Group
endeavours to adhere to the supplier's standard terms. The Company does not trade and consequently cannot disclose an average
creditors payment period. The Group's average payment period in the year for the continuing businesses was 47 days (2002: 55 days).

Substantial shareholdings
As at 16 May 2003, the Group had been notified under Section 198 of the Companies Act 1985 of the following substantial shareholdings
in the ordinary share capital of PHS Group plc.

Name of shareholder Interest in ordinary share capital
FMR Corp/Fidelity International 15.00%
Merrili Lynch Investment Managers 11.56%
5G Asset Management 6.30%
Morley Fund Management 4.46%
Threadneedle Asset Management 4.38%
Legal & General Investment Management 4.21%
Axa Investment Managers UK Limited 4.11%
Abbey National Asset Management 3.44%
Deutsche Asset Management (MGAM UK} 3.12%

Authority to make purchases of own shares

The Board recognises that under certain circumstances, it may be in the best interests of the Company to make purchases of its own
shares. With this iny mind, the Board received shareholder approval at the previous Annual General Meeting held on 12 July 2002 to make
market purchases of its own shares up to & maximum of 51,704,545 shares (being 10% of the Company's ordinary share capital at the
date of passing the resolution) within a specified price range. This authority expires at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting,
due to be held on 11 July 2003, No purchases have been made or are planned under this authority.

It is the intention to introduce a special resolution at this next Annual General Meeting to extend this authority until the end of the
following Annual General Meeting. This authority will relate to a maximum of 51,704,739 shares (being 10% of the Company’s ordinary
share capital) on similar price restrictions, The Board are requesting this authority to allow them to respond rapidly to changes in market
conditions where it becomes beneficial to shareholders generally to engage in market purchases of the Company’s shares.

Corporate social responsibility
The major part of our business is registered for I1SO 9001, the international standard for managing quality and for 15O 14001, the
international standard for environmental management systems. Whilst we are not currently registered, we are working towards
compliance with OHSAS 18007, the international health and safety standard. The Group employs six permanent staff whose primary
responsibility is to monitor the Group's performance in respect of these standards,

Corporate social responsibility also involves companies going beyond their legal obligations and economic and business aims.
We are developing our approach slowly whilst carefully monitoring the international standards, which are continuously evolving.
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Directors’ report continued

Employees
It is Group policy to ensure that employees are provided with information on all matters of concern to them. Accordingly, appropriate
steps are taken to ensure that employees or their representatives are aware of the financial and economic factars affecting the Group’s
performance, are consulted wherever necessary and are encouraged generally to be involved in the Group's overall performance.

It is established Group policy to offer the same opportunities to disabled people as to all others in matters of recruitment and career
advancement, provided they have the abilities to perform the tasks required, with or without training, and to provide retraining where
necessary in cases when disability arises during employment with the Group.

Research and development
Technical devetopment is considered an important part of the Group’s ongoing advancement. Resources are employed in the developmerit
of new products or improving existing products to continuously improve the range and quality that we offer our customers.

All such expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Auditors

Following the conversion of the Group’s auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers to a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) from 1 January 2003,
PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned on 19 May 2003 and the Directors appointed its successor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, as auditors.
Having expressed a willingness to continue in office as auditors, a resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to
the Company in accordance with Section 385 of the Companies Act 1985 will be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

John Skidmore
Company Secretary

4 June 2003
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Remuneration report

Compliance

This rlgport has been prepared in accordance with the Directors” Remuneration Regulations 2002 and the Combined Code, appended

to the Listing Rules, as issued by the Financial Services Authority. The reguilations require the auditors to report to the Company’s
members on the “auditable part” of this report and to state whether, in their opinion, that part of the report has been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the regulations). This report is unaudited with the exception of the

two sections headed “Directors’ remuneration” and “Directors’ interests in shares and share options”.

Remuneration committee
The Remuneration committee is responsible for developing the Group’s remuneration policy and determining the remuneration packages
of the executive directors. It is composed of all three non-executive directors and chaired by 1 G Astrand,

No member of the committee has any persanal financial interest (cther than as a shareholder), conflicts of interests arising from
cross-directorships or day-to-day involvemnent in running the business. No Director plays a part in discussions about his own remuneration.

Remuneration policy

Executive directors’ remuneration - the committee makes recommendations to the Board on the Group's framework of executive
remuneration and its cost after giving full consideration to compliance with the matters set out in the Combined Code.
Where appropriate, reference is made to independent and authoritative surveys.

The committee’s policy is to provide salary. bonuses, pension and other benefits to executive directors and other key senior
management that are competitive with regard 10 those on offer at other comparable companies. The packages provided are intended
1o attract, retain and motivate each executive director to meet the Group's objectives and so enhance shareholder value. The committee
will aiways have regard that it should avoid paying more than necessary for this purpose.

A strong link between the level of remuneration and individual performance against agreed targets is maintained by including a
performance-related element within the remuneration package. The bonus can vary between nil and 30% of each executive director’s
basic salary, so giving them considerable incentive to perform at the highest levels for the ultimate benefit of the shareholders.

Employee remuneration - most employees, particularly sales and service staff, are incentivised by reference to their individual performance
within the framework of the Company's overall performance. Ali permanent employees are eligible for the Savings-related share option
scheme and, in addition, the Company operates an Executive share option scherme for employees who may, from time to time, be
selected to participate by the Remuneration committee.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration — the remuneration of non-executive directors is a matter specifically reserved for the collective
deciston of the Board, subject to the limitations set out in the Articles of Association. The total remuneration for non-executive directors
may not exceed £400,000 per annum.

Executive directors’ remuneration and service ¢ontracts
Both executive directors have a rolling service agreement that is terminable by 12 months’ notice from either party. Other than for reasons
of gross misconduct, if either service agreement is terminated by the Company giving less than 12 months’ notice, the Company is liable
for the payment of a sum equal to the Director's salary and benefits at the time of termination in lieu of the required period of notice.
Alternatively, the Company may continue to provide the benefits during the period.

Any bonus entitiement in respect of any period of notice shall be calculated as though the Director had remained employed during
the period of notice and shall be paid at such time as though the Director had remained employed.

Executive directors’ service contracts will be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

The present remuneration package for executive directors comprises:

Basic salary - this is reviewed and determined annually by the Remuneration committee. Consideration is given to basic salaries paid by
comparable companies and the performance of the executive.

Annual incentive bonus — each executive director is coritractually entitled to an annual bonus in respect of each financial year. The bonus
can vary between nil and 30% of the Director’s basic annual salary dependent upon the audited profit and cash generation achieved by
the Group against targets predetermined by the Board.

Other benefits - these comprise health insurance, provision of a company car (or car allowance) and payment for private fuet.

Pensions — Both executive directors are members of the Group's defined contribution pension scheme to which the Group makes regular
contributions of 15% of each Director’s pensionable earnings in the previous financial year. Pensionable earnings comprise only basic
salary and annual incentive bonus.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration and terms of appointment
R D Mackenzie was appointed for an initial term of three years with effect from 18 September 2000. The appeintment continues
thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than three months written notice from either the Company or Mr Mackenzie.

The other non-executive directors were appointed for an initial term of three years with effect from 6 June 2001. Both appeintments
may be terminated earlier by the Company giving six months written notice or by either Director at any time. In both cases, there is no
entitlement to compensation for termination of the appointment for any reason.

The remuneration of all non-executive directors was determined by the Board, commensurate with their experience and contribution
to the Group, and remains fixed for the duration of the initial three year term.

Neither the Chairman nor non-executive directors participate in the Group's pension scheme or bonus plans nor are they entitled to any
benefits from the Company other than their agreed fees and reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in carrying out their duties.
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration (Audited section)
The emoluments of the Directors of the Company for the years ended 31 March are disclosed below:

Basic salary Annual Other 2003 Peﬁggi
ar fees bonus henefits Total payments
£000 £000 £:000 £'000 : £'000
Non-executive Chairman
R D Mackenzie 75 75
Executive directors
P ) Cohen*
K Blandt 48 8 56
J F Skidmore? 50 g 2 61 - 4 -
Non-executive directors
} M Allant 60 - - 60 49 - -
1 G Astrand 80 - - &0 49 - -
483 25 23 531 484 a2 60

*Highest paid Director.

K Bland resigned as Oirector with effect from 1 October 2002 and was replaced on that date by J F Skidmore. No compensation for foss
of office or any other payment cormected to his termination from office was paid to Mr Bland other than the remuneration to which he
was entitled for the pericd to 7 October 2002 under the terms of his service contract, which contained similar provisions to the cusrent
executive directors’ contracts,

3 M Allan applied three years' annual fees paid in advance to purchase ordinary shares at flotation. If ) M Allan ceases to be a Director
before the expiry of the period for which his fees were paid in advance, a specified portion of the ordinary shares for which he subscribed
using these annual fees will be liable to be repurchased for an aggregate price of £1.

None of the Directors has waived any part of their emoluments during the year.

Pension contributions up to the Inland Revenue cap were made to the Group’s defined contribution scheme. Payments in excess of
this cap are paid to the executive directors as a taxable emolument but disclosed as pension contributions in the above table because they
are paid on the express basis and understanding that payment is for the purpose of pension contributions.

Executive share option scheme

The Company operates a discretionary executive share option scheme, which is only available to employees and full-time Directors who
may, from time to time, be selected by the Remuneration committee to participate. The committee regard this scheme as the principal
long-term incentive for the Group’s senior management.

The scheme is divided into two sections, Section A and Section B, under which options can be granted. Section 8 is an inland Revenue
approved scheme and grants to individuals are subject to the limit imposed by the Finance Act 1996 on the value of shares placed under
option, currently £30,000. Any grants in excess of this limit are made under the unapproved Section A scheme.

No eligible employee is entitled as of right to participate in the discretionary scheme. No payment is required on the grant of an
option, which is always at the market value on the date of the grant.

No options under the scheme were granted to executive directors during the year and no options under the scheme have been
granted to executive directors since the scheme was approved by shareholders in June 2001,

in relation to other employees who were selected to participate in the scheme by the Rermuneration cormimittee, options over
1,136,581 shares were granted in Decamber 2007 at 88p per share, of which 54,598 lapsed in the year. An additional 2,139,880 options
were granted during the year, of which 2,053,918 were at 94.5p per share and the remaining 85,962 at 79.5p. All options are subject to
a performance criteria that they will only be exercisable if the Company's earnings per share over a three-year period exceeds the increase
in the Retail Prices Index plus 2% per annum over the same period.

Savings-related share option scheme
The PHS Group Savings-Related Share Option schieme is eligible to all employees, including executive directors. When a contract is
initiated, options are granted to acquire the number of shares that the total savings will buy when the contract matures three years into
the future,

Employees make fixed manthly contributions of up ta £250 per month aver the three-year contractual period. At the end of this
period employees have the right to buy shares in the Company at the price fixed at the time of the option grant. The price per share at
which options may be granted is not less than 80% of the mid-market price on the last day of dealing befora the offer date.




27 PHS Group pic

Directors’ interests in shares and share options (Audited section)
The beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the ordinary shares of the Company at 31 March are set out below:

Interest in ordinary shares

of the Company

31 March 2003 31 March 2002*

Number Number

R D Mackenzie 2,045,452 2,045,452
J F Skidmore 506,250 506,250
P I Cohen 7,500,000 7,290,000
J M Allany 134,756 134,756
} G Astrand 60,000 60,000

*Or date of appointment if later.

No Director has been granted any option over the shares of the Company or other Group company in respect of quaiifying service.
P J Cohen has a beneficial interest in the Company through the Group's savings-related share option scheme. An option over 13,644
shares was granted to Mr Cohen on 1 December 2007 at 71p per share, exercisable at any time from 1 December 2004 onwards.
There has been no change in the interests stated between 31 March 2003, and the date on which these financial statements were
signed on behalf of the Board.

Total shareholder return

The performance graph befow illustrates the total shareholder return ("TSR") delivered by the Group since its admittance to the London
Stock Exchange in June 2001, in comparison to the TSR delivered by the FTSE 350 Support Services Index. TSR is the measure of the returns
provided by the Group to its shareholders, reflecting movements in share price and assuming reinvestment of dividends when paid.

After due consideration and taking into account the size of the Group and its mix of activities, the Board decided that the FTSE 350
Support Services Index is the most appropriate index against which the TSR of the Group should be measured because it is an index of
similar size companies operating in the same business sector as the Group.

The graph demonstrates that since its flotation in June 2007, the Group has significantly cutperformed the FTSE 350 Support
Services Index.
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Approval

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 4 June 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

JF Skidmore
Company Secretary
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Corporate governance

Combined code
The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of corporate governance and acting with the utmost integrity in all dealings.
This statement, together with the Remuneration report on pages 25 (o 27, explains the manner in which the Group has applied the
provisions of the Combined Code for Corporate Governance (“the code”) in order to meet its commitments.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2003 the Board believes that the Group has complied with the code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises three non-executive (including the Chairman who is responsible for running the Board} and two executive
directors {including the Chief Executive who is responsible for running the Group’s business). The biographies of all Directors are
detailed on pages 20 and 21, and demonstrate that the Board contains sufficient experience and ability to provide effective leadership.

All three non-executive directors bring a range of business, finance and other refevant experience to the Group. Each makes
a significant contribution to the functioning of the Board by applying his judgement and bringing his experience to bear in all
decision-making processes. The Board considers both | G Astrand and ] M Allan to be independent of management and J G Astrand
has been appointed as the Senior Independent Director.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its collective decision. This schedule includes any question
regarding the appointment or removal of any Director or Company Secretary; the composition and terms of reference of each of the
Remuneration, Nomination and Audit committees; strategic policy; approval of all material acquisitions and divestments; and approval
of annual budgets and forecasts.

On appointment, all Directors are given an induction programime designed to give them appropriate training to properly fulfil their
roles. This programme includes meetings with, and presentations from, appropriate senior management combined with visits to a number
of operational depots. Additional training is arranged at any time when a Director requires it to assist in the proper discharge of his duties.

The Articles of Association provide that any Director appointed by the Board must retire from office, but may submit him or herself for
re-election, at the first subsequent Annual General Meeting. In addition, any Director who, at the date of the notice convening any Annual
General Meeting, will have held office for more than 30 months since appointment, or reappointment at a General Meeting, must retire
from office at that Annual General Meeting, but may submit him or herself for re-election.

The Board met nine times during the current financial year, supplemented by frequent contact between meetings and additional
strategic discussions. All Directars have the right to seek external professional advice in the furtherance of their duties at the expense of
the Group and have unfettered access to the advice of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.

At least one week before every Board meeting, each Director is supplied with an agenda and sufficient supperting papers that provide
the appropriate information required for him to properly discharge his duties. Included within these papers are detailed monthly accounts,
which include in depth reports on the performance of each operating division. The accounts are supplemented by written reports from
the executive directors and appropriate financial analysis. Other papers presented deal with the cash flow position of the Group and
proposals regarding future potential acquisitions. The monthly accounts and analysis are also circulated in months where no Board
meeting is held.

The papers may not always be sufficient to provide the Board with all the information they require. In such instances, senior
management are always available to answer any further questions that may arise. The Board constantly reviews the quality, nature and
presentation of information provided and requests changes that they believe will offer more appropriate information.

The three principal committees of the Board are the Remuneration committee, Audit comumittee and Nomination committee.

Each committee has its own terms of reference that have been approved by the Board.

Remuneration committee
The composition and work of the Remuneration committee is set out in the Remuneration report on pages 25 to 27.

Nomination committee

The Nomination committee comprises all three non-executive directors and is chaired by J M Allan. A minimum of one mesting per
financial year is held with additional meetings called as and when requested by any member, The committee makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of Board succession.

The committee operates according to written terms of reference. These include consideration of the size and structure of the Board;
the appointment and duties of executive directors and their continuation {or not) in service; the appointment and reappointment of
noh-executive directors; and whether Directors retiring in accordance with the Articles of Association should be put forward for re-election.

The Nomination comimittee continuously reviews the composition of the Board to ensure that it contains the necessary skills,
knowledge and experience to properiy discharge its duties.

Following the resignation of K Bland during the year, the Nomination committee undertook a detailed search to identify the best
available replacement of the appropriate calibre, This search included the involvement of external consultants.

As a result, the committee recommended the appeintment of J F Skidmore in the role of Finance Director until the next Annual
General Meeting. The committee has reviewed his performance in this role and recommends that he be put forward for re-efection
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Audit commitiee

The Audit committee comprises all three non-executive directors and is chaired by R D Mackenzie. Meetings are rautinely held twice
annually with additional meetings held at the request of either the Chairman or external auditors. The committee assists the Board in
determining whether it is properly discharging its responsibilities for financial reporting and corporate governance (including matters
pertaining to the Group's internal control systems).

The committee operates according to written terms of reference. These include reviewing the scope and results of the audit;
its cost-effectiveness; and the auditors’ independence and objectivity. The committee also maintains a review of the volume of
non-audit services provided in order to balance the objectivity of the auditors with value for money.

The committee has the authority to invite executive directors and representatives of the external auditors to meetings as necessary.
Access to the advice of the external auditors without the presence of the executive directors is available.

The Audit committee will review the interim and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval. The review
will consider (but is not limited to) the accounting policies adopted; areas where major judgements have been exercised; and compliance
with accounting standards, stock exchange, legal and other regulatory requirerments. The committee will also consider any matters arising
from any audit, whether communicated verbally or in writing, and give due consideration to any action recommended.

As part of the terms of reference of the Audit committee, it is responsible for monitoring management’s commitment to establishing
and operating a sound system of internal control. It is also responsible for reviewing, at least annually, the effectiveness of the internal
control system {including financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management).
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Internal control

The Directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Internal control is defined in
the Code as all controls, including financial, operational, compliance, and risk management. The Directors’ procedures for reviewing
the effectiveness of the system of internal contro! have been in place throughout the year and to the date of approval of the financial
statements. Any such system of internal control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstaterment or loss. The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control in place during the year,

The key features of the Group's system of internal control which have been established are as follows:

+ Identification and evaluation of the key risks applicable to each area of business is monitored and assessed on a continuous basis at
executive committee and Board level, This is supplemented by the annual process of preparing business plans and detailed budgets,
and the half-year budget review process;

+ The production of accurate and timely financial management information reported against budget and forecast to the Board;
*» The control of key financial risks through clearly laid down authorisation levels and proper segregation of accounting duties;
* Reqular executive committee meetings of the Group’s most senior managers and executive directors;

« The integrity and competence of personnel is ensured through high recruitment standards and subsequent training courses.
High quality personnel are seen as an essential part of the control environment;

« Capital expenditure is restricted to amounts approved in the annual budget and half-year budget review process. Any significant
over-spend can only cceur after approval from the Board;

« Detailed written proposals are submitted to the Board before any decision is made on authorising investment in acquisitions.
Due diligence reviews are always performed by the Group’s own staff along with extensive use of external advisers; and

* Reqular reviews of the systems and procedures in place at each remote location are performed.

Independence of auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP currently act as the Group's auditors. Both the Audit committee and the auditors themselves have safeguards
in place to ensure that the objectivity and independence of the auditors is maintained. In addition to the annual appointment of the
auditors by the shareholders, the Audit committee regularly reviews their performance and fees charged to ensure that the Group
continues to receive value for money.

Non-audit work in respect of taxation and the due diligence process before significant acquisitions is also carried out by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, as the Board believes that it is in the Group’s best interests to make use of their extensive knowledge
of the business. The Board continuously moniters the quality and volume of this work and will, where appropriate, use other accounting
firms (or other appropriately qualified organisations).

Details of the fees for both audit and non-audit wark are given in note 3 to the financial statements,

Shareholder communication

Communication with shareholders is given a high priority by the Group with designated members of the Board meeting regularly
with institutional investors, analysts and other parties. Private investors have the opportunity to meet and question the Directors at the
Annual General Meeting. it is Group policy to respond to any written requests from shareholders throughout the year.

It is the Group's policy to propose a separate resolution on each substantially different issue at the Annual General Meeting. The level
of proxies lodged, together with the number for and against each resolution, wilt be announced once dealt with by a show of hands at
the meeting.

The Chgirman of the Board will make every effort to ensure that the respective chairs of the Remuneration, Nomination and Audit
committees will be present at the Annual General Meeting and available to take relevant questions from the floor.

The Group's website, www.phs.co.uk, provides additicnal information for both shareholders and the general public.

Going concern

The Board has reviewed and approved the Group’s budget for the financial year erding March 2004 and projections for future years.
After takirg account of the cash flow implications, including proposed capital expenditure and considering the availability of borrowing
facilities, the Board has concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts of both the Group and Company on the going
concern basis.
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Statermnent of Directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Compary and the Group and of the profit or loss for that period. [n preparing those financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

» sefect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and expiained in the
financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statemenits.

The Directors are resporsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the Company and Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directors are also responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Uncertainty regarding legal requirements
is compounded as information published on the internet is accessible in many countries with different legal requirements relating to the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements.
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independent auditors’ report to the members of PHS Group plc

We have audited the financial statements which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated balance sheet,
Company balance sheet, consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes. We have also audited the disclosures required by
Part 3 of Schedute 7A to the Companies Act 1985 contained in the Directors’ remuneration report (“the auditable part”).

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the Directors’ remuneration report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable United Kingdorn law and accounting standards are set out in the Staternent of Directors’ responsibilities.

Our respensibility is to audit the financiat statements and the auditable part of the Directors’ remuneration report in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other persan to whom this report is shown or in to whose hands it may come save where expressiy agreed by our prior consent
in writing.

We rgport to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements
and the auditable part of the Directors’ remuneration report have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compariies Act 1985.
We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman’s
statement, Chief Executive's review, Financial review, the unaudited part of the Directors’ remuneration report, Directors’ report and
Corpoerate governance statement.

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the Board’s statements on internal contro! cover all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company or Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financiat staterments and the auditable part of the Directors’
remuneration report. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation
of the financial staterments, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and auditable part of the Directors’
remuneration report are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion:

+ The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at 31 March 2003 and of the
profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;

* The financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

» Those parts of the Directors’ remuneration report required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

\M‘}%ﬁ Wl

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Cardiff

4 lune 2003
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2003

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
Motes £000 £7000
Turnover 2
Continuing operations - excluding Teacrate 134,139 114,665
Acquisitions - Teacrate only (see below) 5,763 -
Continuing operations 139,902 114,665
Discontinued operations - 402
139,902 115,067
Operating profit/(loss) 2.3
Continuing operations - excluding Teacrate 39,434 33,569
Acquisitions - Teacrate only {see helow) 1,782 -
Continuing operations 41,216 33,569
Discontinued operations - (2
41,216 33,567
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - (969)
Interest receivable and similar income - n
Interest payabte and similar charges 5 (5,182) (14,973)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 36,034 17,656
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 (10,632) 787
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 25,402 18,443
Dividends paic and proposed 7 (2,844) (2172
Retained profit for the year 22 22,558 16,271
Earnings per share 8
Basic earnings per share 4.91p 4.18p
Diluted earnings per share 4.91p 4.18p

The Group has no recagnised gains or losses other than those disclosed above and therefore no separate statement of total recognised

gains and losses has been presented.

Continuing operations include the results of acquisitions made during the year. Other than in the case of the acquisition of Teacrate
Rentals Limited, it is not practicable to determine the post-acquisition turnover and operating profit of businesses acquired during the year.
This is because the trade and assets of the companies or businesses acquired are incorporated into the existing trade and assets of the

Group and their results are not separately identifiable post-acquisition,
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Balance sheets
at 31 March 2003

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Fixed assets
intangible assets 9 345,238 307,990 - -
Tangible assets 10 31,832 26,894 - -
Investments 11 - - 324,288 312,586

377,070 334,884 324,288 312,586

Current assets

Stocks 12 3,827 2,701 - -
Debtors 13 38,555 34,135 14,458 5182
Cash 5,938 9,418 19,099 873
48,320 486,254 33,557 6,085
Creditors: Armounts falling due within one year 14 (29,588) {34,005) (8,699) (1.851)
Net current assets 18,732 12,249 24,858 4,204
Total assets less current liabilities 395,802 347,133 349,146 316,790
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (91,450) (67.963) (91,323) (67.931)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 - - (249) (249)
Accruals and deferred income 19 (37,873) (35,251} - -
Net assets 2 266,478 243,919 257,574 248,610
Capital and reserves
Cailed up share capital 21 51,705 51,705 51,705 51,705
Share premium account 22 187,725 187,724 187,725 187,724
Profit and loss account 22 27,048 4,490 18,144 9,181
Equity shareholders’ funds 23 266,478 243,919 257,574 248,610

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 June 2003 and were signed on its behalf by:

= (L

P ) Cohen J F Skidmore
Director Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2003

Year ended Year ended

21 March 31 March

20032 2002

Notes £'000 £000

Recongciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit 41,216 33,567
Depreciation 8,016 6,454
Loss/{Profit) on disposal of tangible fixed assets 99 (324)
Increase in stocks (776) 3)
Increase in debtors {2,589) (5.444)
Increase in creditors 853 1,671
Net cash inflow from operating activities 46,319 35,921
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 24 (5,052) (38,457)
Taxation paid (7,544) (1.970)
Capital expenditure 24 (10,090) {7.950)
Acquisitions and disposals 24 (45,894) (17,9171
Equity dividends paid (2,379) (672)
Cash outflow before financing (24,140) (31,039)
Financing 24 20,660 39,969
(Decrease)/Increase in cash 25 (3,480) 8,830
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2003
1 Principal accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the
United Kingdom and, except for the treatment of the amortisation of goodwill described below, comply with the Companies Act 1985,
An explanation of this departure from the requirements of the Companies Act is given below.

All existing accounting policies have been reviewed in detail during the year and are considered to be the most appropriate to the
circumstances of both the Company and the Group. No change to any accounting policy has been made in the year.

A summary of the more important accounting policies is set out below,

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts shown in the financial statements, Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Basis of consolidation
The financiat statements have been consolidated under the acquisition accounting method.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from presenting its own profit and loss account as permitted by Section 230 of
the Companies Act 1985.

Income recognition
Turnover comprises the invoiced value of goods sold (which is recognised on despatch) and the rentals receivable on operating leases
(as described further below), exclusive of value added tax.

Operating leases

i) As lessor

Assets on hire to customers are capitalised and depreciated as noted below. Rentals receivable are credited to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis, over the lease term. income is recognised from the day of inception of the lease. Amourts received in advance are
shown in the bhalance sheet as deferred income.

i} As lessee
Lease payments are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Research and development
Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.

Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses that are directly attributable to the acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cast of tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic lives of the
assets concerned. The principal annual rates of depreciation used are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Freehold property $0 years
Short Jeasehold property Over the lease term
Equipment installed at customers’ premises 1to 10 years
Other equipment and vehicles 3 to 10 years
Tooling 4 years
Goodwill

Purchased goodwilt represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired.

Goodwill in respect of acquisitions made is shown as an asset and, in accordance with FRS 10 "Intangible assets and goodwill”, each
acquisition is assessed to determine the useful economic life of the business and the goodwill. For the types of business acquired by the
Group to date, the Board considers that the goodwill is an inseparable part of the total value of the relevant business. These are service
businesses that are not subject to high volatility in fashions ar markets and demand for these services is likely 1o continue for the foreseeable
future, Such businesses, if properly managed. should grow in value over the years and hence neither the value of the business nor the
goodwill has a measurable economic life. Where it is considered that the value of the business or its goodwill does have a measurable
economic life, any related goodwill would be amortised through the profit and loss account by equal instalments over such useful
economic life, In this context, the useful economic life of the businesses and goodwill are reviewed annually and revised where appropriate.

In the event that the useful economic life does not exceed 20 years, goodwill would be subject to an impairment review at the end
of the year of acquisition and at any other time when the Directors believe that impairment may have occurred. Where the goodwill is
assigned a useful economic life that is in excess of 20 years or is indefinite, the value of the relevant businesses and goodwill is assessed
for impairment against carrying values on an annual basis in accordance with FRS 11 "Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill”,

Any impairment is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises.

The Group has acquired a number of businesses in the year as detailed in note 28. The Directars have reviewed these acquisitions
and consider that these businesses and the associated goodwill have an indefinite useful economic life and the goodwill is therefore not
being amortised.

This treatment represents a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985, which does not permit an indefinite useful
economic life. The departure is, however, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the financial statements to give a true and fair view
in accordance with applicable accounting standards. If this goodwill were amortised over a 20 year period, the profit before tax for the
year ended 31 March 2003 would be reduced by £16,738,000 (2002: £14,682,000), with a corresponding reduction in reserves and
intangible assets. The cumulative armount that would have been written off against reserves is £53,724,000.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Investments .
Investrnents held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which takes account of any provision necessary to recognise damage and
obsolescence. Cost is based on a FIFO measure and includes labour, materjals, transport and directly attributable overheads.

Finanwial liabilities and issue costs

All borrowings are initially stated at the fair value of the consideration received after deduction of issue costs. Issue costs are charged to the
profit and loss account together with the coupon, as finance costs, on a constant yield basis over the term of the borrowings, or over a
shorter period where the lender can require earlier payment.

Finance leases

Leasing agreements (including equivalent hire purchase or finance agreements) which transfer to the Company substantially all the
benefits and risks of ownership of an asset are treated as if the asset had been purchased outright. The assets are included in fixed assets
and the capital element of the leasing commitments is shown as obligations under finance leases. The lease rentals are treated as
consisting of capital and interest elements. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations and the interest element is
charged against profit in proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
the useful economic lives of the equivalent owned assels or period of lease if shorter.

Deferred taxation
A deferred tax liability is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only when, on the basis of alf available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be suitable taxable profits against which to recover carried forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timing
differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are
expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Foreign exchange

Transactions expressed in foreign turrencies are ranstated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign curvency
assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Any differences are taken to the profit and

loss account.

Government grants

Grants in respect of expenditure on fixed assets are included as deferred income and recognised in the profit and loss account over the
expected useful economic fives of the related assets. Revenue based grants are recognised in the profit and Yoss account in the period to
which they relate.

Pension costs
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for eligible employees. Pension costs represent contributions payable to the
scheme for the year.
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2 Turnover and segmental reporting
An analysis of the Group's turnover is set out below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 37 March
2003 2002
E'000 £000
Continuing operations

Rental {operating leases) 122,777 102,428
Sales 17,125 12,237
139,902 114,665

Discontinued operations
Rental (operating leases) - 402

139,902 115.067

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and operating profit, by class of business, is set out below:

Year ended 31 March 2003 Year ended 37 March 2002
Operating Cperating
Turnover  profit/{loss) Profit Turnover profiviloss) Profit
£'000 £'000 margin £'000 £'000 margin
Continuing operations
PHS Washrooms: Washroor services 99,459 46,006 46.3% 83,785 33,970 47.7%
PHS Treadsmart: Dust mat services 14,419 3,940 27.3% 13,524 3,370 24.9%
PHS Greenleaf: Live and replica plants 13,183 2,010 15.2% 14,065 1,984 14.1%
PHS Waterlogic: Point of use water dispensers 7,078 2,580 36.5% 3,291 862 26.2%
Teacrate: Crate rental 5,763 1,782 30.9% - -
139,902 56,318 40.3% 114,665 46,186 40.3%
Central costs
Normal - (14,261) - (11,712)
Exceptional - (841) - (905)
139,902 41,216 29.5% 114,665 33,569 29.3%
Discontinued operations - - 402 (2)
139,902 41,216 29.5% 115,087 33,567 29.2%

Turnover and operating profit/(loss) from continuing operations are principally earned and sourced from the United Kingdomn. Turnover
and operating loss from discontinued operations relate solely to the operations of PHS Inc and PHS Protector BV, which were sold in the
year ended 31 March 2002.

Exceptional central costs comprise expenditure on the integration of acquisitions into the Group's existing operations including
redundancy costs, payments for termination of leases and other restructuring costs.

An analysis of the Group’s net assets at 31 March, by class of business, is set out below:

2003 2002

£'000 £:000

PHS Washrooms: Washroom services 293,922 269,222
PHS Treadsmart: Dust mat services 14,469 14,221
PHS Greenleaf: Live and replica plants 16,701 16,479
PHS Waterlogic: Point of use water dispensers 15422 12,710
Teacrate: Crate rental 17,730 -
358,244 312,632

Less: Group net debt (87,916) (69,536)

Less: Proposed dividends {1,965) (1,500)
{Less)/Add: Taxation (1,885) 2,323

266,478 243,919

Net assets are principally located in the United Kingdom.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Net operating expenses and operating profit
An analysis of the Group’s net operating expenses is set out below:

Year ended 31 March 2003 Year ended 31 March 2002

Continuing Acquisitions Continuing Discontinued
operations  {Teacrate only) Total operations operations Total
£'C00 £'CO0 E'000 £'000 £:000G £°000
Change in stocks 755 - 755 39 (42) (3)
Own work capitalised (2,402) - (2,402) (1.280) - (1,280)
Raw materials and consurmables 12,388 - 12,388 12,875 62 12,937
Employee costs (note 4) 44,689 1,899 46,588 40,844 251 41,095
Depreciation 7,613 403 8,016 6,427 27 6,454
Other operating charges 31,662 1,679 33,341 22,191 106 22,297
94,705 3,981 98,686 81,096 404 81,500

Included within depreciation above is £100,000 (2002: £40,000) of depreciation on assets held under hire purchase or finance leases.
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
E'000 £000

Rentals under operating leases:
Land and buildings 1,426 762
Plant and machinery 4,891 3,706
Other assets 6 422

Fees paid to auditors:

Audit services (Company: Enil) 93 75
Other services 53 95
Property rents receivable (92) (108)
Grant income - (80)
Loss/(Profit) on disposal of tangible fixed assets 99 (324)

In addition to the amounts noted above, fees of £336,000 (2002: £723,000) have been paid to the Group’s auditors for non-audit
services. £336,000 (2002: £173,000} of these fees were paid and capitalised within goodwill in respect of acquisitions during the year and
£nit (2002: £550,000) were paid and written off against the share premium account in respect of the flotation,

4 Directors and employees
Directors’ emoluments for the year comgrise:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2003 2002

£000 £'000

Salaries for management services 313 293
Fees 195 171
Other emoluments (including benefits in kind} 23 20
531 484

Contributions to money purchase pension schemes 42 60
573 544

Further details of Directors” emoluments and of the highest paid Director are given in the Remuneration report on pages 25 to 27 which
forms part of these financial statements.

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2003 2002

Number Number

Administration 460 391
Sales 447 385
Service 1,445 1,355

2,352 2,131
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4 Directors and employees (continued)
Employee costs for the above persons were:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
£'000 £'C00
Wages and salaries 42,063 36,969
Social security costs 3,734 3,381
Other pension costs 791 745
46,588 41,095
5 Interest payable and similar charges
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
£'000 £000
In respect of borrowings repaid in the year ended 31 March 2002
Interest payable on secured senior debt - 3,714
Interest payable on unsecured subordinated loan notes - 3,559
Amaortisation of issue costs - 3,220
Exceptional interest rate swap cancellation fee - 1,062
- 11,555
Other interest payable
On bank loans and overdrafts 4,805 3,050
Amortisation of issue costs 223 113
Cn acquisition loan notes 120 251
On hire purchase or finance leases 34 4
5,182 3418
5,182 14,973

Bank interest payable and receivable have been netted off to reflect the substance of the Group’s banking arrangements.

No interest has been capitalised during the year (2002: £nil).

Included within interest paid in the year ended 31 March 2002 were exceptional items comprising £2,576,000 in respect of the
write-off of previously unamortised issue costs related to the borrowings repaid in the year and £1,062,000 for the cancellation of an

interest rate swap.

6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

{a) Analysis of charge/(credtt) in the year
The taxation charge/(credit) is made up as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
£'000 £'000
Current tax

UK corporation tax on profits for the year 9,583 4,043
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (135) (27}
9,448 4,016

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 1,184 (4,803)
10,632 (787)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities {continued)

(b} Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The differences are explained below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
£'000 £'000
Profit before taxation 36,034 17,656
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% 10,810 5,297
Effects of:
Temporary differences bhetween taxable and accounting profit:
Accelerated capital allowances (9864) (1,562}
Losses (183) - -
Other short-term timing differences (39) -
Prior year credit (135) (27
Permanent differences 41) 308
Current tax charge for the year {note 6(a)) 9,448 4,016
The deferred tax asset/(liability) is made up as follows:
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Accelerated depreciation over capital allowances 1,982 3,505 - -
Capital gains/revaluations (249) (249) (249) (249)
Tax losses carried forward 1,362 1,545 - -
3,095 4,801 (249) (249)
The movement on the deferred tax asset/(liability) is as follows:
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
E£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 4,801 - (229) -
Transferred in from acquired company (522) (2) - -
Profit and loss account (1,184) 4,803 - (249)
At 31 March 3,095 4,801 (249) (249)
7 Dividends paid and proposed
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2003 2002
£'000 £'000
Equity - Ordinary shares of 10p each
interim dividends paid: 0.17p (2002: 0.13p) per ordinary share 879 672
Final dividends proposed: 0.38p (2002: 0.29p) per ordinary share 1,965 1,500
2,844 2172

There are no arrangements under which any shareholder has agreed to waive an entitlernent to receive dividends.

8 Earninygs per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share has been calculated in accordance with FRS 14 “Earnings per share”. The data used in the
calculations is as follows:

Basic EPS Ditutions  Diluted EPS
Year ended 31 March 2003
Profit after taxation (£'000) 25,402 - 25,402
Weighted average number of shares in issue (‘000 shares) 517,047 180 517,227
Earnings per share 4.91p 4.91p
Year ended 31 March 2002
Profit after taxation (£'000}) 18,443 - 18,443
Weighted average number of shares in issue ("000 shares) 440,847 191 441,038
tarnings per share 4.18p 4.18p

The adjustments between the basic and diluted EPS reflect the grant of share options in 2001 under the Group's savings related share
option scheme (see note 21).
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9 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased

Goodwill
Group £:000
Cost and net book value
At 1 April 2002 307,990
Adjustments to prior year provisional fair values (33)
Additions 37.281
At 31 March 2003 345,238

Additions to purchased goodwill represent the purchase of goodwill associated with the Group's acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and
unincorporated businesses during the year, as detailed in note 28.

Goodwill arising on a number of the acquisitions made in the year can be determined only on a pravisional basis because the fair
values of the purchase consideration and net assets acquired cannot yet be finally determined.

Adjustments to prior year provisional fair values comprise revisions to the fair values of both the net assets acquired and consideration
paid recognised at 31 March 2002. The revisions to the fair values of the net assets relate to alignment of accounting policies with
acquisitions undertaken in the latter part of the year to 31 March 2002 where final information was not available at the time of preparing
the financial staternents for that year.

During the year ended 31 March 2003, the Group acquired a number of businesses, The Directors have reviewed these acquisitions
atong with the Group's underlying business and in accordance with the policy described in note 1, consider that these businesses and
associated goodwili have an indefinite useful economic life and consequently the goodwill is not being amortised.

10 Tangible fixed assets

Equipment
Short installed at Other

Freehold ! hold customers’ equipment

property property premises and vehicles Tooling Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2002 11,313 830 20,436 10,272 2,539 45,390
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 117 - 1,875 970 - 2,962
Additions 328 14 71.567 2,087 273 10,269
Disposals (3) - (3,488) (1177 - (4,668)
At 31 March 2003 11,755 844 26,390 12,152 2,812 53,953
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2002 (222) (170 (11,063) (5,247) (1,794) (18,496)
Charge for the year (113) (95) (5.372) (2.093) (343) (8.0186)
Disposals - - 3,309 1,082 - 4,391
At 31 March 2003 (335) (265) (13,126) (6,258) (2,137) (22,121)
Net book value
At 31 March 2003 11,420 579 13,264 5,894 675 31,832
At 31 March 2002 11,091 660 9,373 5,025 745 26,894

Additions to other equipment and vehicles include £430,000 in respect of assets in the course of construction that have not been
depreciated in the year.

The net book value of assets held under hire purchase or finance leases is £280,000 (2002: £111,000).
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11 Investments

Shares in Loans to

subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings undertakings Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost and net book value

At 1 April 2002 200 312,386 312,586
Additions - 11,702 11,702
At 31 March 2003 200 324,088 324,288

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are set out below. The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary
undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length. A full list of subsidiary undertakings at 371 March 2003 will be annexed to the

Caompany's next Annual Return,

MName Class of capital Proportion of shares held

Principal activity

Personnel Hygiene Services Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Provision of workplace
services at custormer prermises

PHS Western Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (direct)

Intermediate holding company

PHS Al Clear Lirnited £1 ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Clinical waste collection and disposal

PHS Holdings Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% (direct)}

Intermediate holding company

£1 preference shares 100% (indirect)

PHS Investments Limited 10p deferred shares 100% (indirect)

Intermediate holding company

$0.05 ordinary shares 100% (indirect)

Teacrate plc (formerly PHS Rentals plc) £1 ordinary shares 100% {indirect)

intermediate holding company

Teacrate Rentals Limited 100% (indirect)

(formerly Teacrate plc)

10p ordinary shares

Specialist crate rental

Companigs are incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

12 Stocks
2003 2002
Group £'000 £'000
Raw materials 272 225
Finished goods 3,555 2,476
3,827 2,701
13 Debtors
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 32,445 26,477 - -
Armounts owed by group undertakings - - 14,366 5,023
Cther debtors 463 128 92 14
Recoverable deferred tax 300 575 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 2,452 2,055 - 145
35,660 28,235 14,458 5,182
Falling due after more than one year:
Recoverable deferred tax 2,795 4,226 - -
Prepayrments and accrued income 100 674 - -
38,555 34,135 14,458 5,182
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£'000 £'000 £7000 £:000
Bank and other borrowings {see note 16) 2,404 10,991 - -
Trade creditors 7,050 6,597 - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 3,806 125
Dividends payable 1,965 1,500 1,965 1,500
Other creditors 7,126 7,967 227 223
Corporation tax 4,980 2,478 2,701 3
Other taxation and social security 6,063 4,472 - -
29,588 34,005 8,699 1.851
15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£000 £000 £000 £:000
Bank and other borrowings (see note 16) 91,450 67,963 91,323 67,931
16 Bank and other borrowings
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£000 £:000 £000 £:000
Amounts falling due within one year;
Acquisition loan notes 2,249 10,883 - -
Obligations under hire purchase or finance leases 155 108 - -
2,404 10,991 - -
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Bank loan 91,323 67,931 91,323 67,931
Obligations under hire purchase or finance leases 127 32 - -
91,450 67,963 91,323 67,931

The bank loan and acquisition loan notes are secured by a guarantee and debenture dated 29 June 2001. Under the terms of the
guarantee the security granted by the Group can be summarised as follows:

Asset Nature of security Value of security
All freehold and leasehold land and buildings held at 29 June 20071 First legal mortgage Unlimited
All freehold and leasehold land acquired subsequent to 29 June 2001 First fixed charge Unlimited
All pfant and machinery First fixed charge Unlimited
All book debts, securities, goodwill, uncalled capital, intellectual property rights and cash First fixed charge Unlimited
All ather assets Floating charge Unlimited

The bank loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin that may vary between 0.9% and 1%. The debt is repayable in two instalments, the
first falling in June 2004, and the other in June 2006.

The acquisition loan notes were issued as partial consideration for a number of the Group’s acquisitions made in the three years to
31 March 2003, The ultimate redemption date of each foan note falls within either 2003 or 2004 but each is capable of redemption at the
option of the holder within one year of the balance sheet date.

Of the total balance of acquisition loan notes, £1,400,000 pays interest at 1.5% below LIBOR and £849,000 at 1% below LIBOR.

Each hire purchase and finance fease is secured on the assets under lease and bears interest at an implicit fixed rate that varies between
7% and 11% per annum,
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17 Finaneial instruments
The principal financing and treasury exposures facing the Group relate to working capital management, the financing of acquisitions and
tangible fixed assets, the management of interest rate positions and the investment of surplus cash.

The Group's functional and reporting currency is sterfling. Since the Group has no operations based overseas and little trade in other
currencies, the currency exposures faced are minimal. The Group has a continuing strategy of not holding any hedging for foreign
exchange management.

The Group borrows at both fixed and floating rates of interest with the objective of managing interest rate risks, The most substantial
barrowings currently attract interest at rates linked to LIBOR. In the current environment of low gearing and high interest cover, the
Directors consider that the level of interest rate risk is acceptable and do not believe it to be appropriate to hedge this risk at this time.
The Group has a strategy of using a combination of these borrowings and internally generated cash to finance its acquisitions.

The Group also has financial instruments in the form of short-term debtors and creditors that arise in the normal course of business.
Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures that follow.

(a} Interest rate and currency risk profile of financial fiabifities and assets
The fixed and floating interest rate profile of the Group's financial liabilities and assets was as follows:

31 March 2003 31 March 2002
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
rate rae Total rawe rate Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £:000
Financia! assets - 5,938 5,938 - 9,418 9,418
Financial fiabilities (282) (93,572) {93,854) {2.122) (76.832) (78,954)
(282) (87.634) (87,916) (2,122) (67.414) (69,536)

Financial liabilities and assets are denominated in sterling.

(b} Interest rate profile of borrowings and finance leases
The interest profile of the barrowings and finance leases is set out in note 16, The Group receives interest an its cash balances at floating
rates of interest linked to money market rates.

The weighted average interest rate and weighted average period for which the rate is fixed, on the fixed rate financial liabilities is
shown below:

Fixed rate financial

liabilities weighted Fixed rate financial

average period for liabilities weighted

which rate is fixed average interest rate

2003 2002 2002 2002

Years Years % %

Sterling borrowings 21 0.7 8.6 5.1

The weighted average period is based on the maturity of the respective debt.

(c) Borrowing facilities and liquidity risk
The Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 March 2003, consisting of a £13,600,000 working capital facility
{2002: £6,542,000), and a £30,720,000 auxiliary facitity (2002: £17,547.000),

These undrawn comrmitted borrowing facilities expire on 29 lune 2004,

(d) Fair values of financial liabilities and financial assets
The fellowing table provides a comparison by category of the carrying values and fair values of the Group's financial liabilities and financial
assets at 31 March. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument couid be exchanged in an arm's length transaction between
informed and willing parties {other than a forced or liquidated sale) and excludes accrued interest.

The fair values of short-term borrowings and cash approximates to the carrying value because of the short maturity of these
investrments. The fair value of long-term borrowings approximates to the carrying value because substantially all of these borrowings
attract interest at a floating rate.

31 March 2003 31 March 2002
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£'000 £'000 E'000 £000

Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance

the Group's operations

Short-term borrowings (2,404) (2,404) (10,991) (10,991}
Long-term borrowings (91,450) (91,450) (67.963) (67,963)
Cash at bank and in hand 5,938 5,938 9,418 9,418

(87,916) (87,916} (69.536) {69,536)
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17 Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group's financial liabilities, excluding short-term trade creditors and aceruals, at

31 March was as follows:

31 March 2003
Within 1 year Between Between In 5 years

of on demand 1 and Z years 2 and b years OF more Total

£000 £'000 £000 £7000 £'000
Bank loans - (23,244) {68,079) w (91,323)
Acquisition Toan notes (2,249} - - - {2,249)
Obligations under hire purchase or finance leases (155) (86) (41) - (282)
(2.404) (23,330} {68,120) - (93,854)

31 March 2002

Within 1 year Between Between In 5 years

or ont demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years or mere Totaf
£°000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £:000
Bank loans - - 67,931 - 67,931
Acquisition loan notes 10,883 - - - 10,883
Obligations under hire purchase or finance leases 108 32 - - 140
10,291 32 67,931 - 78,954
{f} Currency risks
Al assets and kabilities of the Group at both 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002 are denominated in sterling.
18 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Provisions for liabilities and charges arising in the Company are wholly in respect of deferred taxation as explained in note 6.
19 Accruals and deferred income
2003 2002
Group £'000 £'000
Accruals 4,435 349
Deferred income 33,439 31,760
37,874 35,251

Deferred income represents the unearned proportion of rentals receivable from customers in advance and will normally be credited to

turnover within one year.

20 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for eligible employees, Contributions by the Group are charged to the profit and loss

account as incurred. The total pensions costs for the year are shown in note 4.
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21 Called up share capital

Group and Company Ez?.u;g s‘f?ég
Authorised

695,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 69,500 69,500
Allotted, issued and fully paid

517,047,388 (2002: 517.045,452) ordinary shares of 10p each 51,705 51,705

During the year. 1,936 ordinary shares were issued at 71p per share following the exercise of an option granted in 2001 under the terms
of the savings related share option scheme.

At 31 March 2003, the following options had been granted and remain outstanding in respect of the Company’s 10p ordinary shares
under the Company's share option schemes.

Number of 10p ovdinacy shares

Year Exercise  Date normally

granted price axercisable 2003 2002
Savings related share option schemes 2001 71p 2004-2005 1,842,503 2,292,706
2002 76p  2005-2006 574,700 -
Discretionary share option scheme 2001 83p 2004-2011 1,081,983 1,136,581
2002 94.5p 2005-2012 2,053,918 -
2002 79.5p  2005-2012 85,962 -

22 Statement of movement on reserves
Group Company
Share Profit Share Profit
premium and loss premium and loss
acsount asecount account account
£'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
At 1 April 2002 187,724 4,490 187,724 9,181
Premium on issue of shares 1 - 1 -
Retained profit for the financial year - 22,558 - 8,963
At 31 March 2003 187,725 27,048 187,725 18,144

A profit of £11,807,000 on ordinary activities after taxation arose in the Company (2002: £11,335,000).

23 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds/{deficit)

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

£000 £:000 £000 £1000

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 25,402 18,443 11,807 11,335
Dividends paid and proposed (2,824) (2,172) (2,844) (2172}
Retained profit for the financial year 22,558 16.27 8,963 9,163
New share capital subscribed 1 250,000 1 250,000
Write-off of expenses and commission on the public issue of shares - (12,481) - {12.4987)
22,559 253,780 8,964 246,672

Opening shareholders’ funds/ (deficit) 243,919 (9.861) 248,610 1,938

Closing shareholders’ funds 266,478 243,919 257,574 248,610
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24 Analysis of other headings in the cash flow statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2002 2002
E'000 £000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received - 31
Interest paid on secured senior debt - (7.708)
Interest paid on unsecured subordinated loan notes - (25,254)
Exceptional interest rate swap cancellation fee - (1.062)
Interest paid on bank loans and overdrafts (4,681) (3,022)
Issue costs incurred in respect of borrowings subseguently paid - (416)
Issue costs incurred in respect of outstanding bank loans (t88) (771)
Interest paid on acquisition loan notes {149) {251)
Interest paid on hire purchase or finance leases (34) (4

(5,052) (38,457)

Capital expenditure

Purchase of equipment installed at customers’ premises (7.567) (6,028)
Purchase of other tangible fixed assets (2,702) (2.865)
Proceeds of sale of tangible fixed assets 179 943
(10,050) (7.950)
Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisition of subsidiaries and other businesses (45,564) (18,071)
Acqulisition expenses {1,257) (720)
Net cash acquired 927 684
Disposal of subsidiaries - 577
Disposal expenses - (220)
Net cash disposed - (167}
(45,894) (17.911)
Financing
Receipt of bank foans 23,357 68,589
Receipt of secured senior debt - 2,700
Repayment of bank loans (2,414) -
Repayment of secured senior debt - (146,085)
Repayrnent of unsecured subordinated loan notes - (122,655)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 1 250,000
Expenses and commission paid in respect of the issue of ordinary shares - {12,491)
Repaymenit of capital elernent of hire purchase or finance |eases (284) (89)

20,660 39,969

Other than in the case of the acquisition of Teacrate Rentals Limited, the trade and assets of acquisitions made during the year have been
amalgamated into the existing trade of the Group and therefore their effects on the reported cash flows cannot be determined. The cash
flows included above and relating to the post acquisition activities of Teacrate Rentals Limited are summarised below:

Year ended

31 March

2003

£000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,893
Returns on investment and servicing of finance (11)
Taxation paic (779)
Capital expenditure (305)
Financing (89)

Increase in cash 709
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25 Movements in net debt

Acquisitions
At 1 April {excluding cash  Other nen-cash At 31 March
2002 Cash flow  and overdrafts) changes 2003
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 9,418 (3,480) - - 5,938
Debt due within one year
Bank lpans - 2,414 (2.414) - -
Acguisition loan notes {10,883) 10,151 - .51 (2,249)
Obligaticns under hire purchase or finance leases (108) 284 (426) 95 (155)
(10,9971) 12,849 (2,840) (1,422) (2,404)
Debt due after more than one year
Bank lopans (67,931) (23,189) - {223) (91,323)
Obligations under hire purchase or finance leases (32) - - (95) (127)
(67,963) (23,169) - (318) (91,450)
Net debt (69,538) (13,800) (2,840) (1,740) (87,916)
26 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2003 2002
£'000 £'000
{Decrease)/Increase in cash during the year (3,480) 8,930
Cash flow from (increase)/decrease in debt and lease financing {(10,320) 224,699
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {13,800) 233,629
Bank loans and leases acquired with subsidiaries (2,840) (145)
Changes in net debt resulting from non-cash changes {1,740) (13,934)
Movement in net debt in the year (18,380) 219,550
Net debt at T Apri! (69,536) (289,086)
Net debt at 31 March (87,916) (69,536)

Non-cash changes comprise £223,000 of amortisation of debt issue costs and £1,517,000 of acquisition loan notes issued as partial
consideration for acquired businesses.

27 Capital commitments
The Group had capital commitments of £54,000 at 31 March 2003 (2002: £nil). The Company had no capital commitments at 31 March
2003 (2002: £nil).

28 Acquisitions

During the year, the Group has acquired the entire issued share capital of a number of companies as well as the trade and net assets of a
number of unincorporated businesses. The acquisitions that the Directors believe to have been individually material to the Group are
identified below:

Total

consideration
Acquired entity Nature Acquisition date £°000
Teacrate Rentals Limited (formerly Teacrate pic) Company 8 April 2002 14,572
The Well Corporation Limited Company 3 May 2002 5697
Hygeni-Care Limited Company 20 September 2002 3,195
Redland Hygiene Limited Company 18 October 2002 2.269
Britannia Hygiene plc Company 2 December 2002 3,769
Other companies and businesses 7.968
Total for all acquisitions 37,470

For each material acquisition, a table showing the book value, fair value adjustments and fair values of each class of asset and liability
acquired is provided. The 1ables also analyse the fair value of the consideration paid and set gut the purchased goodwill arising,.
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28 Acquisitions (continued)

Alignment of

oo Book value accounting policies Fair value
Teacrate Rentals Limited £'000 £'000 £000
Intangible fixed assets 2,475 (2,475) -
Tangible fixed assets 2,497 - 2,497
Debtors 1,430 (14) 1,416
Cash 423 - 423
Total assets 6,825 (2,489) 4,336
Bank loan (2,1586) - (2.156)
Other creditors (1,570) (57) (1.627)
Provision for liabilities and charges GB11) - (511}
Net assets/(liabilities) 2,588 (2,546) 42
Purchased goodwitl 14,530
Consideration 14,572
Satisfied by
Cash 13.526
Deferred cash consideration 500
Acquisition expenses 546
14,572

Teacrate plc made a profit after tax of £553,000 from 1 July 2001 to the date of acquisition and a profit after tax of £1,094,000 in the

previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of provision against irrecoverable debtor balances, recognition

of liabilities and writing off acquired goodwill.

Alignment of

Book value actounting policies Fair value
The Well Corporation Limited E'000 E'000 E'000
Tangible fixed assets 279 (56) 223
Stocks 15 - 15
Debtors 805 - 805
Cash 68 - 68
Total assets 1,167 (56) 1,711
Creditors (625) - (625)
Net assets/(liabilities) 542 (56) 486
Purchased goodwill 5211
Consideration 5,697
Satisfied by
Cash 5,300
Deferred cash consideration 300
Acquisition expenses 97
5,697

The Well Corporation Limited made a loss after tax of £768,000 from incorperation on 15 January 2001 to the date of acquisition.

This was the first accounting period of the company.

Fair value adjustments comprise adeption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition and depreciation.
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28 Acquisitions (continued)

Alignment of

Hygeni-Care Limited Book ?x secounting mﬁh&:;; rair ;ﬁ
Tangible fixed assets 71 (47) 24
Stocks 111 (109) 2
Debtors 129 6 135
Cash 190 - 190
Total assets 501 (150} 351
Creditors (204) (59) (263)
Net assets/(liabilities) 297 (209) 88
Purchased goodwill 3,107
Consideration 3195
Satisfied by
Cash 3,100
Deferred cash consideration 23
Acquisition expenses 72
3,195

Hygeni-Care Limited made a profit after tax of £311,000 from 1 August 2007 to the date of acquisition and a profit after tax of £219,000

in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group palicies in respect of fixed asset and stock recognition, depreciation, provision

against irrecoverable debtor balances and accounting for deferred income,

Alignment of

Book value accounting policies Fair value
Redland Hygiene Limited E'000 £'000 £'000
Intangible fixed assets i1 (321) ~
Tangible fixed assets 85 (62) 23
Stocks 238 - 238
Debtors 954 - 954
Total assets 1,598 (383) 1,215
Bank overdraft {205} - {205)
Bank loan (233) - (233)
Creditors (853) (33} (686)
Net assets/(liabilities) 507 (416} 91
Purchased goodwill 2,178
Consideration 2,269
Satisfied by
Cashy 1,673
Loan notes 520
Acquisition expenses 76
2,269

Redland Hygiene Limited made a profit after tax of £24,000 from 1 January 2002 to the date of acquisition and a profit after tax of

£81,000 in the previous financial year.

Fair value adjustments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, accounting for deferred

income and writing off acquired goodwill,
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28 Acquisitions (continued)

Alignment of

i i} . Book value accounting policies Fair value
Britannia Hygiene plc £'000 £'000 €000
Tangible fixed assets 23 (21) 2
Stocks 19 (15) 4
Debtors 144 (34) 119
Cash 118 - 118
Total assets 304 (70) 234
Creditors (65) (478) (543)
Net assets/(liabilities) 239 (548) (309)
Purchased goodwill 4,078
Consideration 3,769
Satisfied by
Cash 3,688
ACOLUSTLION expenses 81

Britannia Hygiene plc made a ioss after tax of £128,000 from 1 September 2002 to the date of acquisition and a profit after tax of
£79,000 in the previous financial year,

Fair value adjustments comprise adopticn of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, lessor accounting on
operating leases, accounting for deferred income and provision against irrecoverable debtor balances.

Alignment of

. Book value accounting policies Fair value
Other acquisitions £000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 780 {587) 193
Stocks 182 (56) 126
Debtors 635 66 701
Cash 333 - 33
Total assets 1,930 (577 1,353
Bank loan (25) - (25)
Other creditors (1,274) (263) (1.537)
Net assets/(liabilities) 631 (840) (209)
Purchased goodwill 8177
Consideration 7.968
Satisfied by
Cash 6,689
Deferred cash consideration 343
Loan notes 593
Acquisition expenses 343

7.968

Fair value adjustiments comprise adoption of Group policies in respect of fixed asset recognition, depreciation, lessor accounting on
operating leases, accounting for deferred income and provision against irrecoverable debtor balances.
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28 Acquisitions (continued)
An analysis of cash and cash equivalents in respect of each acquisition s provided below:

Teacrate The Well Redland Britannia
Rentals Corporation Hygeni-Care Hygiene Hygiene
Limited Uimited Limited Limited ple Others Totat
£'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 E'000
Cash consideration
(including acquisition expenses) 14,072 5,397 3.172 1,749 3,769 7,032 35,191
Cash at bank and in hand acquired 423 68 190 - 118 333 1,132
Bank overdraft acquired - - - (205} - - (205)
Net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents 14,495 5,465 3,362 1,544 3,887 7,365 36,118

In addition to the above, £11,630,000 was paid in respect of acquisitions made in prior years. This was mainly as a result of the
conversion of loan notes or the realisation of deferred consideration.

29 Operating lease commitments
At 31 March, the Group was committed to making the following annual payments during the next year in respect of non-canceilable
operating leases:

2003 2002
£'000 £000
Land and buiidings
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 145 14
Within two 1o five years 447 289
After five years 702 491
1,294 794
Other
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 382 296
Within two to five years 3,567 3,751
After five years - 113
3,949 4,160

30 Related party transactions
Where appropriate the Company and Group have taken advantage of the exemption available not to disclose any related party
transactions and balances with other 90% owned, of greater, Group companies for the financial year.

31 Post balance sheet events

The Group has made seven acquisitions since the year-end, purchasing the entire issued share capital of Airstrean Services Limited

for cash consideration of £25.0m, the entire issued share capital of Alphasan Limited for cash consideration of £2.4m, the entire issued
share capital of Specialised Waste Services Limited for cash consideration of £1.1m and four smafler companies and businesses for
cash consideration of £0.3m. These acquisitions were partly funded by borrowing an additional £20.0m through our existing facilities
(as described in nate 17).
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Five-year summary

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

£'000 £000 £°000 £°000 £'000

Turnover 58,779 77.874 97,068 115,067 139,902

Operating profit 11,780 15,397 26,744 33,567 41,2186
Net interest payable (1,879 {20,510) (30,386) {14,242} (5,182)

Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - - - (969) -

Profit/{Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 9,801 (5,113) (3,642) 17.656 36,034
Taxation on profit/{loss} on ordinary activities (2.644) (45) 300 787 (10,632)

Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 7,157 (5,158) (3,342) 18,443 25,402

Equity minority interests 43 (M - - -

Profit/(Loss) for the year 7,200 (5,159) (3,342) 18,443 25,402
Dividends - - - (2172 (2,844)

Retained profit/{loss) for the year 7.200 (5,159) (3,342) 16,271 22,558
Basic earnings/{loss) per share 1.63p {(1.18p) (0.75p) 4.18p 4.91p

Basic earnings/(loss) per share has been calculated as if the weighted average number of shares in issue for the year ended 31 March 2002
had been effective in each of the three years ended 31 March 2001.

The results for the year ended 31 March 2000 are derived by combining the audited financiat statements of PHS Group plc for the
period from incorporation on 7 July 1999 to 31 March 2000, with the resuits prior to 7 July 1999 of the hoiding company acquired by
PHS Group plc on 7 luly 1999.
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Notice of meeting

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company wili be held at the Company’s Registered Office,
Western Industrial Estate, Caerphilly CF83 1XH on Friday, 11 July 2003 at 1:00 pm for the following purposes:

Ordinary business

Resolution Number 1 )
To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2003.

Resolutiorn Number 2
To approve the Divectors’ Remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2003,

Resolution Nurnber 3 )
To approve the declaration of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2003 of 0.38p per ordinary share. to be paid on 20 August
2003 to all shareholders registered at the close of business on 25 July 2003.

Resolution Number 4
To re-elect Mr J F Skidmore as a Director.

Resolution Number 5

To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the Company (having previously been appointed by the Board to fill the casual
vacancy arising by reason of the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers), to hold office until the conciusion of the next general meeting
at which accounts are laid before the Company and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Special business

Resolution Number 6

Ordinary resolution

In accordance with Article 6 of the Company's Articles of Assaciation, the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised to allot
relevant securities within the meaning of Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 up to a maximuwm aggregate nominal amount of
£17.062,564 (being 33% of the Company's issued ordinary share capital at 31 March 2003). Such authority shall expire on 10 July 2008
and all previous authorities under Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 be revoked.

Resolution Number 7

Special resolution

Subject to the passing of the previous resolution 6 and in accordance with Article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”) and the authority conferred by said resolution 6, 1o allot
equity securities for cash as if Section 89(1) of the Act dic not apply to the allotment, provided that such power is limited to:

{i) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue;

(i} the allotment of equity securities in satisfaction of the valid exercise of options pursuant to the Company’s executive and savings-
related share option schemes; and

(iii) the allotment (other than in connection with a rights issue) of equity securities having a nominal amount not exceeding £2,585,237
(being 5% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 31 March 2003}

This power shall expire on 10 fuly 2008 and ali previous authorities under Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 be revoked.
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Resotution Number 8

Special resolution

The Company be generally and unconditionally authorised to make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163(3} of the
Companies Act 1985) of, and to cancel, ordinary shares of 10p each in the ordinary share capital of the Company provided that:

(i) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 51,704,739 (being 10% of the Company's ordinary
shares in issue at 31 March 2003);

(i) the minimum price that the Company may pay is 10p per share and the maximum price that the Company may pay is 105% of the
average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the Daily Official List of the UK Listing Authority for the
five business days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is purchased, in both cases exclusive of expenses;

(iii} the authority hereby conferred {unless previously revoked or varied) shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company, but before such expiry, the authority shall allow the Company to enter into a contract to purchase ordinary shares which
may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority.

By order of the Board

fohn Skidmore
Company Secretary
11 June 2003

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual Gerteral Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a
poli, vote instead of him or her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2.A form of proxy is enclosed which holders of ordinary shares in the Company are invited to complete and return in the envelope
provided. To be valid, forms of proxy must be deposited with Computershare Investor Services, P O Box 1075, The Pavilions, Bridgwater
Road, Bristot 8599 7NH not fess than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting. Completion and return of the proxy form in
accordance with the instructions thereon does not prevent such shareholders from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting
in person.

3.The register of interests of Directors and their families together with copies of the Directors’ service cantracts will be available at the
Company's registered office on weekdays (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) during usual business hours from the date of this
notice uniil the date of the Annual General Meeting and will, on the date of the Annual General Meeting, be available for inspection at
the venue of the meeting from 15 minutes prior to and until the conclusion of the meeting.

4. Only those members registered in the register of members at close of business on 8 July 2003 will be entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the register after that time will
be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
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Shareholder information

Directors, secretary, registered office and advisers

Directors

Robert David Mackenzie Non-executive Chairman
Peter James Cohen Chief Executive

John Fletcher Skidmore Finarnce Director

John Murray Allan Non-executive director

lan Guninar Astrand Norn-executive director

Company secretary
John Fletcher Skidmore

Registered and head office
Western Industrial Estate
Caerphilly CF83 1XH

Stockbroker

Merrill Lynch International
20 Farringdon Road
London ECTM 3NH

Financial calendar and web site

Solicitors
Morgan Cole
Bradley Court
Park Place
Cardiff CF10 3DP

Registered Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
One Kingsway

Cardiff CF10 3PW

Principal Bankers
Bank of Scotland plc

PC Box 39900
Bishopsgate Exchange
Level 7, 155 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 3YB

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services pic
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Interirm results published December 2003
Dividend payment dates:

Finat 20 August 2003
Interim lanuary 2004 (provisional)
Web site W phs.co.uk
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